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          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ABANDONMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Good afternoon. I

          3  am Councilman Lawrence Warden and I chair the

          4  Subcommittee on Abandonment, Foreclosure and

          5  Disinvestment.

          6                 Today the Subcommittee is conducting

          7  an oversight hearing on the weatherization program.

          8  Given the condition of the New York City's dwelling

          9  units, many of them are old, subject to wear and

         10  tear, or built when fossil fuels were relatively

         11  inexpensive, weatherization can be an important

         12  aspect of the long term financial and physical

         13  maintenance of the City's Housing stock.

         14                 Weatherization can also make a

         15  difference for a low-income households, facing the

         16  differences between heat or food. The Weatherization

         17  Assistance Program is administered by the New York

         18  State Division of Housing Conservation and Renewal,

         19  known to many of us in the field as DHCR, and funded

         20  by federal government.

         21                 In New York City, weatherization

         22  services are provided to homeowners and tenants to

         23  meet certain income guidelines. Services are

         24  provided by 16 not-for-profit subgrantees of the

         25  weatherization assistance program under the
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          2  supervision of DHCR.

          3                 Witnesses invited to offer testimony

          4  on this topic include representatives from HPD, and

          5  DHCR, subgrantees and other members of the

          6  weatherization community and members of the public

          7  concerned with this matter.

          8                 I understand that HPD has decided not

          9  to testify at this hearing, because the agency no

         10  longer has a role in the weatherization process.

         11  However, we have received written testimony from the

         12  former Assistant Commissioner of HPD, Energy

         13  Conservation Division, which supervised the

         14  weatherization program in New York City during the

         15  late eighties, and served as a resource on

         16  techniques for reducing energy use and residential

         17  buildings until it was eliminated in 1990. You will

         18  hear from that letter shortly.

         19                 We are not here today to discuss the

         20  past, so much as we are here to learn more about the

         21  weatherization program and what the subgrantees can

         22  do for residents of New York City and to discuss the

         23  City's possible future role in weatherization

         24  efforts.

         25                 I would like to call on Michael
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          2  Balagur to read the letter that was received from

          3  former Assistant Commissioner Judd.

          4                 MR. BALAGUR: Mike Balagur, Policy

          5  Analyst, Housing and Buildings Committee.

          6                 This is testimony submitted by Peter

          7  Judd, of 285 Riverside Drive.

          8                 To the honorable members of the

          9  Committee, I am honored by your request to present

         10  testimony at this hearing, since I will be unable to

         11  be present, I submit to you this letter which will

         12  give you background on past efforts at HPD to reduce

         13  fuel use in City and privately-owned residential

         14  buildings.

         15                 I served as Assistant Commissioner in

         16  the Energy Conservation Division at HPD from May

         17  1984, to March 1990. The unit had been created two

         18  years previously under Commissioner Tony Greedman,

         19  and it was abolished as one of the first actions of

         20  the Dinkins Administration which led to my departure

         21  from the agency.

         22                 ECD, during my tenure, had a small

         23  but dedicated staff. As projects undertaken under

         24  the sponsorship of the New York State Energy

         25  Research and Development Authority increased, we
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          2  oversaw a number of contracts.

          3                 ECD was also given supervision of the

          4  federally funded state line of Weatherization

          5  Assistance Program in the late 1980s. By that time

          6  we were in charge of over $2 million worth of

          7  programs.

          8                 ECD had two overall goals: (a) to

          9  serve as a resource and techniques for energy use in

         10  residential buildings, with emphasis on oil-fueled;

         11  and (b) to establish standards by which fuel

         12  assumption could be judged.

         13                 The staff had a substantial outreach

         14  effort involving performing combustion efficiency

         15  tests and energy audits, and an instructional

         16  program in the boiler room which we called teach and

         17  tag.

         18                 This latter included a combustion

         19  efficiency test, instruction on the components of

         20  the heating plant and its controls in tagging the

         21  key functions.

         22                 The audits included a survey of the

         23  heating plant controls and the heat distribution

         24  system, typically steam in New York City, and made

         25  recommendations for more efficient performance.
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          2                 Each of these three components, the

          3  heating plant, which includes the burner and boiler,

          4  the control systems regulating the on and off times

          5  of the unit and its pressure, and the pipes and

          6  radiators through which the steam is distributed in

          7  the building, the calibration to retrieve an

          8  optimally efficient result.

          9                 The ECD staff served privately-owned

         10  buildings for a fee, as well as low-income

         11  cooperatives and City-owned buildings.

         12                 By the late 1980s, we were visiting

         13  several thousand buildings a year. Staff also

         14  conducted training sessions for supers and building

         15  owners and participated in industrywide conferences.

         16                 Most of our work was in multi-family

         17  buildings, but through the weatherization and other

         18  programs, we serve one- to four-family dwellings.

         19                 We developed a series of case study

         20  reports which showed how the owners had achieved a

         21  good standard of fuel use.

         22                 The data gathered in our field work

         23  allowed us to develop standards for owners and

         24  managers to go by. We found there was an enormous

         25  spread in fuel use in similar types of buildings.
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          2                 In an article I termed it the 600

          3  percent spread, meaning that there was that much

          4  difference between fuel use to provide heat, that is

          5  some owners were able to heat buildings to a

          6  standard where there were no violations, at

          7  something over 200 gallons per year, while others

          8  used about six times that amount.

          9                 We advocated a level of about 275 to

         10  350 gallons of oil per dwelling unit per year as a

         11  standard. Our experience was that the buildings

         12  that' were the highest consumption were largely

         13  those in City ownership.

         14                 We also found little connection

         15  between new equipment and energy efficiency.

         16                 New equipment is dated in some cases

         17  for reliability, but unless it is installed and

         18  operated correctly and carefully, it will not be

         19  energy efficient. There are no technical fixes. The

         20  equipment, when installed, would automatically

         21  reduce fuel use.

         22                 Persistent in inventive operation and

         23  management are the keys to economy and these require

         24  knowledge and the training to use it.

         25                 These conclusions and the data that
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          2  support them are amply documented and reports made

          3  by ECD to the New York State Energy Research and

          4  Development Authority.

          5                 ECD was abolished for reasons never

          6  made clear, and those are the staff which stayed on,

          7  and transferred to a unit in HPD's Office of

          8  Property Management.

          9                 My last task was to design a program

         10  for that office to put in place what we called Heat

         11  Swat Team, to work on the high oil consuming

         12  City-owned buildings.

         13                 In a program based on a successful

         14  New York Housing Authority effort, these teams would

         15  undertake the similar kinds of services the ECD

         16  offered and focused on the oil guzzling monsters in

         17  the City portfolio.

         18                 My understanding was that this effort

         19  was funded in 1991, whether it continues, I do not

         20  know.

         21                 Outreach such as ECD undertook to

         22  buildings whose owners are struggling to maintain

         23  basic services can be appropriately offered by

         24  private entities, such as the Cornell Cooperative

         25  Extension Service, the Apartment House Institute,
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          2  the Community Training and Research Center and

          3  neighborhood-based groups.

          4                 Since training and educational are

          5  essential, it is important that the City encourage

          6  these.

          7                 Presumably HPD staff can inform the

          8  Committee on the current status of fuel management

          9  in City-owned buildings and the budgetary

         10  implications.

         11                 I am pleased that the Committee is

         12  investigating this topic. Though fuel prices are

         13  low, there remains money being wasted in excessive

         14  fuel use and this leads to abandonment and costly

         15  City ownership.

         16                 I trust that representations of the

         17  organizations currently engaged in energy

         18  conservation and weatherization, as well as HPD,

         19  will bring you up to date on the latest conditions.

         20                 Sincerely yours, Peter H. Judd.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 Before we begin, you have already

         24  heard from Mike Balagur, Policy Analyst, and to his

         25  right is Counsel to the Committee Terzah Nasser.
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          2                 I am going to call on Anne Pasmanick,

          3  from Community Training Resource Center.

          4                 Okay, would you introduce who is with

          5  you and have everybody state their name for the

          6  record.

          7                 MS. PASMANICK: (Ms. Pasmanick's

          8  microphone has not been turned on.)

          9                 Good afternoon. I would like to thank

         10  Council Member Warden and the other members of the

         11  subcommittee for holding this hearing and for giving

         12  me and my colleagues the opportunity to speak today.

         13  The organization we represent, Community Training

         14  and Resource Center, works to improve and preserve

         15  the City's privately-owned housing stock. We do this

         16  work because a safe and affordable housing stock is

         17  critical to the viability of low and moderate income

         18  communities in New York City. And we are grateful

         19  for the commitment that the New York City Council

         20  has demonstrated in support of the code enforcement

         21  and housing preservation needs of lower income

         22  tenants, owners and communities.

         23                 For many of us here today, the

         24  federally-funded Weatherization Program is a key

         25  component toward achieving maximum habitability in
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          2  our City's housing stock. The Weatherization Program

          3  makes home owner and rental housing more energy and

          4  cost efficient by providing new boilers, roofs and

          5  windows to households that are income eligible and

          6  in need. These improvements enable homes to retain

          7  heat and prevent families from freezing in the

          8  winter months. This investment of resources is

          9  particularly important to lower income households

         10  without alternative housing options. Those who are

         11  most vulnerable to unsound housing conditions - the

         12  disabled, recent immigrants, the elderly and

         13  children - benefit from building weatherization from

         14  both a public health and housing preservation

         15  perspective. Given the retrenchment of the federal

         16  government in the low-income housing development

         17  arena, there is a considerable need to invest in the

         18  sustainability of the existing housing.

         19                 CTRC believes that weatherization

         20  should be an integral part of a plan to improve the

         21  City's low-income neighborhoods and a mandatory

         22  requirement for CTRC's Landlord Training Program,

         23  the initiative we created to improve the provision

         24  of heat by non-professional landlords in poor

         25  communities. We have learned, through our work with
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          2  these owners, that it is simply not possible to

          3  sustain the private housing stock, at the low end of

          4  the housing market, without the resources provided

          5  by the Weatherization Program.

          6                 Since 1995, the Landlord Training

          7  Program has been targeting owners of multiple

          8  dwellings who have heat and hot water violations and

          9  are first-time offenders in New York City Housing

         10  Court. The court allows owners to attend a course of

         11  training and technical assistance workshops

         12  presented by the CTRC at Cornell University

         13  Cooperative Extension Program in lieu of a fine.

         14                 As an alternative sentencing program,

         15  the course trains owners in heat and hot water

         16  systems management, housing law and regulation in

         17  New York City and effective and appropriate

         18  communications with tenants, but failure to complete

         19  the course results in the reimposition of the fine.

         20                 In either case, a court order is

         21  issued that requires the owner to repair the problem

         22  and provide the requisite services.

         23                 Ultimately the landlord training

         24  program is a strategy for improving housing

         25  conditions for lower income tenants in New York
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          2  City. In particular, we sought to get more tenants

          3  heat in the winter, a recurring problem in many

          4  communities.

          5                 Our method for improving the

          6  provision of the heat has been to concentrate on

          7  owners of small holdings in low income areas who do

          8  not have the experience or resources needed to

          9  operate their buildings successfully.

         10  Accomplishments of the program the first year were

         11  substantiated by the lack of heat and hot water

         12  violation recidivism the following heat season by

         13  the landlords who attended the course.

         14                 What the landlord training program

         15  has shown us is that early intervention with

         16  inexperienced building owners in the form of

         17  education and technical support is critical to

         18  improving conditions for low-income renters.

         19                 In the 1997/'98 program year, 82

         20  percent of the owners surveyed in the class were

         21  born outside the United States. The owners were born

         22  in a variety of countries, including Trinidad,

         23  Haiti, Jamaica, Italy, China and Guyana. In

         24  addition, 40 percent were from equatorial regions

         25  where the provision of heat is an unknown concept.
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          2                 As a result, many owners in the

          3  program have limited experience with heating systems

          4  and the critical obligation of owners to provide

          5  heat and hot water during New York City's heating

          6  season.

          7                 Consequently, energy audits that

          8  instruct owners in how to improve their heating

          9  operations are critical.

         10                 The heating system is just one of

         11  many systems that must work concurrently within a

         12  building. Owners need to learn how these systems

         13  work and how they can be repaired and maintained.

         14  The Association for Energy Affordability, AEA, and

         15  member organizations like the community

         16  environmental center, have been at the forefront of

         17  saving our housing stock, increasing safety,

         18  reducing cost and conserving energy.

         19                 In addition to energy audits,

         20  organizations like the CEC have provided eligible

         21  owners with roof and wall insulation, heating system

         22  repair or replacement, window repair and

         23  replacement, heating distribution upgrades, and

         24  weather stripping and building sealing.

         25                 In turn, they have helped save owners
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          2  fuel costs, reduce repair bills, and increase the

          3  reliability of heating systems. These are all

          4  services that ultimately benefit tenants without

          5  adequate heat and hot water.

          6                 Throughout the United States, the

          7  federally supported weatherization assistance

          8  program services more than 200,000 dwellings every

          9  year. Since the inception of the program in 1977,

         10  over 375,000 dwelling units in New York State have

         11  been weatherized. Only a small fraction, estimated

         12  4.4 million units serviced nationally in the last

         13  two decades.

         14                 While the Weatherization Program has

         15  been a decided success, federal funding for WAP has

         16  been cut nationally by 47 percent since 1995. These

         17  cuts have occurred at a time when New York City's

         18  own resources for housing preservation and code

         19  enforcement are diminishing.

         20                 In New York State, the Weatherization

         21  Assistance Program is currently administered by the

         22  State Division of Housing and Community Renewals,

         23  DHCR, Energy Services Bureau, ESB.

         24                 In the mid-1970s, New York City

         25  operated WAP through the City's Community Services
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          2  Administration, CSA. At no time, however, has the

          3  City of New York contributed any funding to the

          4  Weatherization Assistance Program or had a say in

          5  where and how the federal dollars are spent.

          6                 The State also does not supplement

          7  federal funding with its own resources. It may be

          8  time for the City of New York to consider its

          9  relationship to the weatherization program.

         10                 The US Department of Energy estimates

         11  that the percent of income spent on household energy

         12  needs is far greater for low income households than

         13  it is for non-low-income households.

         14                 That is, the average low income

         15  household will spend 14 percent of its income on

         16  energy costs, compared to 3.5 percent for

         17  non-low-income households. These low income

         18  households are largely situated in multi-family

         19  rental housing where weatherization resources are

         20  most severely needed.

         21                 It is clear that weatherization

         22  services create immediate and long-term benefits,

         23  such as, ensuring healthy safe and comfortable

         24  dwellings affordable to low income people, reducing

         25  operating and maintenance costs to building owners,
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          2  and improving the housing stock and spurring

          3  neighborhood revitalization.

          4                 Weatherization upgrades achieved

          5  through matching federal and owner dollars will save

          6  owners significant amounts of money and will improve

          7  the quality of life of their low-income renters.

          8                 While there are some state funds

          9  available for low-income tenants, such as the Home

         10  Energy Assistance Program, HEAP, to cover the cost

         11  of heating bills, only limited resources are

         12  available to low income owners such as those who

         13  participate in the landlord training program for

         14  diagnostic and energy efficient purposes.

         15                 There are many owners in low and

         16  moderate income communities who are not real estate

         17  professionals and who have deficient building

         18  systems. They need energy audits to help them to

         19  identify where the problems in their building

         20  systems are and to supply a roadmap for making the

         21  needed improvements.

         22                 It is our hope that the New York City

         23  Council will consider appropriating funding in the

         24  Fiscal Year 2000 to bring these energy audits to

         25  owners and tenants in communities that are most
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          2  affected by poor housing conditions.

          3                 We hope as well that these resources

          4  will be targeted in a strategic and meaningful way.

          5                 The owners who have graduated from

          6  our landlord training program and the tenants they

          7  house need and deserve these resources. These owners

          8  have had a demonstrated problem in operating their

          9  heating plants. They are motivated to save money in

         10  fuel and fines and establish more equitable and

         11  cooperative relationships with their tenants. They

         12  live and work in the communities in which the

         13  housing preservation needs are greatest.

         14                 There is a definite need for greater

         15  reinvestment in the buildings owned by small

         16  property owners to combat abandonment and hazardous

         17  conditions for tenants. Given this demand, it is

         18  critical that we augment the capacity of the

         19  weatherization program.

         20                 In the case of the landlord training

         21  program, energy audits should be an integral part of

         22  the course. How else will we ensure that owners

         23  identify and redress the problems in the heating

         24  system?

         25                 Again, thank you for the opportunity
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          2  to speak on this very important matter. We look

          3  forward to working with you on these critical

          4  issues.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: It is

          6  interesting, being a layman in this area. The

          7  question is, how does one access the services?

          8                 If you have a small home owner, maybe

          9  three, four, five family, in the tip of the Bronx,

         10  how do they access these services?

         11                 MS. PASMANICK: (Microphone is not

         12  turned on.) That is really the question we are

         13  asking also. The program requires both owner

         14  participation and tenant income eligibility, so it

         15  really is almost a method in bringing the two

         16  parties together, and I think as other speakers

         17  speak they will explain that programmatically, I

         18  think it is fair to say that there is more need than

         19  there is money in the program.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: There usually is.

         21                 MS. PASMANICK: There usually is, that

         22  is not too surprising.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: You mentioned the

         24  energy audit, and suggest that there be an

         25  allocation by this Council to handle that task; what
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          2  kind of dollars are you talking about?

          3                 (Witness' microphone has just been

          4  turned on for the first time.)

          5                 MS. PASMANICK: It's a little late.

          6                 So, they are now in a position with

          7  the energy audit to receive that level of service.

          8                 One of the things that needs to

          9  happen that our co-trainers have pointed out to us

         10  is the owners need to be there. They need to control

         11  the system and operate the system. They would do

         12  that in a much more educated way if they had the

         13  benefit of the energy audit.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay.

         15                 You talked about the Landlord

         16  Training Program, how much recidivism have you

         17  observed in that program?

         18                 MS. PASMANICK: Well, although the

         19  figures sound too good to believe, so I am almost

         20  embarrassed to say them, we are told by the lawyers

         21  at HPD who litigate these cases against these

         22  owners, in the cases of the landlords in buildings

         23  who have been brought into our program, those who

         24  have been sued as first-time violators, there has

         25  been no recidivism.
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          2                 One of the things we have asked HPD

          3  to do as a partner with us in this project is to

          4  commit inspectors to go back to some of those

          5  buildings after the training is completed. They

          6  haven't done that but the way that information is

          7  turned up is through the violations that appear in

          8  the aftermath of our session.

          9                 So, we are confident that we have had

         10  some good impact and we have been fortunate to hear

         11  from some of the owners themselves, about the steps

         12  that we have taken, and Kevin collected a list of

         13  anecdotes from owners who during the course of the

         14  nine-hour three-week training that we engaged them

         15  in have made small and large steps towards improving

         16  their systems in making the buildings more

         17  habitable.

         18                 MR. RYAN: I just wanted to add to

         19  that that when we completed the report, I think we

         20  passed out the report from the second year of the

         21  program, we located certain clusters of houses in

         22  different neighborhoods where there were a large

         23  number of first-time violators in our program, and I

         24  think there were four cluster areas in Brooklyn

         25  where we located these owners. And one of the things
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          2  we discussed with HPD on an initial level was to

          3  follow up with these areas where there are clusters

          4  of buildings that appear in the program. So that was

          5  something that we just had an initial discussion

          6  about but something hopefully we will be able to

          7  follow up with.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Would you state

          9  your name for the record, please.

         10                 MR. RYAN: My name is Kevin Ryan.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay.

         12                 You said you have had a dialogue with

         13  HPD, HPD says we don't have anything to do with

         14  this, where is the mix?

         15                 MS. PASMANICK: That's a good

         16  question.

         17                 I would like to say I am surprised

         18  that they didn't come today, I am very sorry that

         19  they didn't.

         20                 I know there are people there who

         21  were there, not many of them in the era of Peter

         22  Judd, and know the value of those programs and their

         23  application in these communities that we are talking

         24  about.

         25                 We have had many, many, many
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          2  conversations with HPD about the landlord training

          3  programs specifically because they need to cooperate

          4  in this in order for it to work.

          5                 They prosecute the cases and they

          6  enter the owners into consent orders in lieu of a

          7  fine. So, without them we can't do it and we

          8  appreciate that contribution.

          9                 We are not sure as to why they are

         10  not interested in being more engaged in a

         11  weatherization program of their own, because it

         12  would make such a mark, as Peter Judd pointed out,

         13  not only in the private housing stock, in the low

         14  end, but in City-owned housing and in the low-income

         15  cooperatives which we really have a vested interest

         16  in preserving and sustaining as a resource.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: That is something

         18  we are going to have to explore a little further.

         19                 Access is one of the key things that

         20  I would be interested in then. Can you share with us

         21  your experience in reaching out to home-owners and

         22  building owners about weatherization services?

         23                 MS. PASMANICK: The other speakers,

         24  again to defer to their wisdom, can do that better.

         25                 I can tell you that when they come to
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          2  us they are not always so happy in the beginning

          3  because they are there by virtue of having messed up

          4  somewhat and having to be there in lieu of fine or

          5  choosing to be there.

          6                 Some people have a very positive

          7  outlook and some people grow into a positive outlook

          8  very closely because they are getting their hands on

          9  practical information, real quality instruction.

         10                 We, however, in our classes make the

         11  weatherization information available to them and

         12  they are very interested. We see pencils and paper

         13  come out quickly and people wanting to know.

         14                 I think that is an important question

         15  you asked because for many of the people there who

         16  are again largely immigrant owners, they may not

         17  have access to that information. They may not know

         18  the best technical and financial resources to look

         19  to and we just point them in that direction.

         20                 What we hope to be able to do is to

         21  give them some more hands-on help after the end of

         22  the classes to access those resources and to use

         23  them as successfully as possible.

         24                 It really could be a very interesting

         25  community education project, because as Kevin
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          2  stated, we now have designated areas where some of

          3  these first-time violators are, and we would like to

          4  reach out to those communities and make them also a

          5  partner in disseminating the information and helping

          6  their community members to be successful.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: One final area.

          8  Are you aware of what other cities or states are

          9  doing in terms of funding weatherization initiatives

         10  that we should know about?

         11                 MS. PASMANICK: We have been in

         12  contact with the American Association for Code

         13  Enforcement. I didn't know that that organization

         14  existed until I guess about a year ago when we were

         15  doing some research and when an article about our

         16  program circulated in papers and we were asked to

         17  speak to different cities about helping them to

         18  replicate the program in their locality.

         19                 We at the same time learned from them

         20  about some of the very interesting strategic work

         21  they are doing to make code enforcement better in

         22  their communities.

         23                 One example is Phoenix Arizona, where

         24  they work with their City Council to designate

         25  specific areas in which code enforcement needs are
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          2  greatest, these kinds of cluster areas, and they

          3  have attached CDBG funding to that initiative. They

          4  have a set of inspectors that are dedicated to going

          5  into those neighborhoods to connecting those

          6  neighborhoods with weatherization resources, with

          7  loans, with educational services, with just street

          8  level repairs to improve conditions.

          9                 We have seen that there, we have seen

         10  a number of different cities gearing up to be more

         11  strategic and more assertive about enforcing the

         12  housing codes, and that is somewhat inspiring,

         13  although it clearly takes a level of will that looks

         14  towards a collaboration between the governing body,

         15  the City Council in most cases, the City Housing

         16  Agency and neighborhood groups. In Phoenix, Arizona

         17  the neighborhood groups are an important part of

         18  that partnership and they prioritize the code

         19  enforcement needs for the benefit of the

         20  collaboration.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 MS. PASMANICK: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         25  much. I am glad you were able to come to share with
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          2  us.

          3                 MS. PASMANICK: I am very pleased for

          4  the opportunity. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Richard Cherry.

          6                 MR. CHERRY: Good afternoon. I am

          7  Richard Cherry, President of the Community

          8  Environmental Center. I want to just say that it is

          9  really terrific that this Committee and you, as

         10  Chairperson, are spending some time on what we have

         11  always believed the City needed to spend more time

         12  thinking about. And I hope this is the beginning.

         13                 I left you some written testimony. I

         14  will read brief from some sections of it, rather

         15  than bore you with reading all of it, and be glad to

         16  answer your questions, including some that you

         17  raised before.

         18                 As you know, New York City has no

         19  residential energy conservation program or

         20  weatherization program other than that which is done

         21  through state monies, and yet we also know that

         22  there are a lot of weatherization that needs to be

         23  done in New York City.

         24                 The Community Environmental Center is

         25  fairly unique in that we see weatherization as both
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          2  an energy and housing issue, as well as an

          3  environmental issue. Our mission is to help people

          4  in New York City achieve a healthier, more

          5  comfortable and more affordable life through

          6  improvements to their homes and their communities,

          7  and many of these are done through the

          8  weatherization program.

          9                 Weatherization is a bridge between

         10  housing and environmental programs, and as you look

         11  into this matter more, please, I know you are a

         12  Housing Committee but I think the City Council ought

         13  to recognize the importance of it is on its

         14  environmental side.

         15                 We do over 1,300 homes or apartments

         16  each year and the responses we get from clients are

         17  always very positive, not to say always, there are

         18  always some folks who are a pain in the neck.

         19                 One of the things that we also do

         20  through the weatherization program is what we call

         21  no-heat emergencies, that is where people who are

         22  income eligible lose their heat suddenly during the

         23  winter, and weatherization agencies go out within 72

         24  hours and restore that heat in one- to four-family

         25  homes.
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          2                 I have left a book with more

          3  information about our specific programs with you.

          4  You will see the letters we get, we have some copies

          5  there.

          6                 For example, one quote that is in

          7  there for a client in Jamaica said it's about time

          8  the state funded a program like this. I hope it will

          9  continue to do so. Let me say it is perhaps time the

         10  City also funded a program like this.

         11                 Weatherization can reduce a

         12  building's energy cost by approximately a third. The

         13  value of this program is that it both saves money

         14  for the people and it saves if the people who have

         15  the least to throw away.

         16                 It also provides low-income families

         17  with affordable heat, this often being the

         18  difference between preserving or abandoning a

         19  building.

         20                 I think this Committee is a very

         21  appropriate place to be looking at weatherization.

         22  We constantly are dealing with buildings that are at

         23  that fringe of cash flow, that the difference of

         24  cutting a third off your heating bill makes it

         25  something a landlord could keep or an owner could

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            31

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ABANDONMENT

          2  keep.

          3                 We also do many, many one to

          4  four-family homes owned by seniors and other

          5  low-income people who, thank goodness because of the

          6  weatherization program are able to live out their

          7  whole life that they can in the home that they have

          8  lived in for so many years. I can't tell you how

          9  thankful seniors are about this program.

         10                 The first step in weatherizing a home

         11  is taking an energy audit. Within the last decade,

         12  our technology has increased tremendously. We are

         13  really able to tell what the most cost-efficient

         14  measures are, not just do things that we think will

         15  work, but things that we know will get the highest

         16  payback.

         17                 New York State has developed a

         18  program that allows us to be free to do our job

         19  while properly setting standards and monitoring that

         20  work. And it allows therefore each of the agencies

         21  to do what is best, because building by building you

         22  have to design a program, it isn't something that is

         23  rubber stamped, the audit is the tool that begins

         24  that process.

         25                 And two benefits come from it. One is
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          2  the financial benefit, keeping things more

          3  affordable. In New York State last year about 8,500

          4  dwellings were weatherized, you know, this is only a

          5  fraction of what we need done here just in New York

          6  City alone, but that savings over the life of the

          7  retrofits, for one year's worth of retrofits in New

          8  York State generated $45 million worth of savings

          9  over the life of those retrofits.

         10                 What happens with those savings? They

         11  can get spent in the local community instead of

         12  sending it off to some foreign land, let's say. It

         13  can get paid in the local grocery store or it can

         14  help a homeowner buy some clothes it couldn't

         15  otherwise buy before, and particularly help them

         16  keep their home.

         17                 Environmentally weatherization is

         18  helping us clean up our air. The reduced use of

         19  fuel, an efficient home leads to less carbon

         20  monoxide, nitrogen oxide and sulfur dioxide. As we

         21  look more and more at the global warming problem, we

         22  realize what a major contribution weatherization has

         23  made to maybe we will soon be able to have cold

         24  weather in December like we are supposed to have.

         25                 Community Environmental Center is
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          2  also working on something that I really want some

          3  attention to, because I think it is an opportunity

          4  for the City. We are putting together a bank pool, a

          5  pool of banks that are willing to step out there for

          6  the first time and matching weatherization money,

          7  state weatherization money will be lending private

          8  money. This is going to allow us to do considerably

          9  more work in each unit, as well as do more units.

         10                 If this demonstration goes as well as

         11  we expect it to, it is going to open up the coffers

         12  of the private banking community for the first time.

         13  And in fact, my fear is that we are going to have --

         14  we are not going to have enough public money to

         15  match the amount of private money that will become

         16  available and another very important reason for the

         17  City to step up and start putting some of its money

         18  out.

         19                 So, what is my specific suggestions?

         20  Well, you could give me $100 million and I will make

         21  sure it is spent well.  More seriously, I think what

         22  the City ought to start with is a very targeted

         23  fund. It ought to look at whether it wants to target

         24  it for the tenant interim lease buildings that are

         25  out there desperately needing new heating systems,
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          2  desperately in need of cash flow. The weatherization

          3  can make the difference of these buildings either

          4  surviving or going back to the City.

          5                 Looking at the 7A program, we have

          6  had conversations with the 7A administrators

          7  downtown, here in HPD, and they all say it would be

          8  wonderful to be able to do energy efficient work in

          9  the building, but, gee, we got to do all of these

         10  other priorities first.

         11                 It is time to recognize the priority

         12  of energy savings because it has a long lasting

         13  effect, and I would suggest one of the targets you

         14  could do if you put City dollars up is to make that

         15  edge a difference and require that with those

         16  dollars the 7A buildings before they go out go out

         17  working efficiently.

         18                 I think we all know in the field that

         19  the City is putting out thousands of units every

         20  year that have been rehabbed that are working very

         21  inefficiently and are burdens that are wasting money

         22  on the new owners, particularly the community

         23  groups.

         24                 If you put money up, use the existing

         25  subgrantee network, I mean what is beautiful here is
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          2  you can get great efficiency out of any dollars you

          3  put up because we have already got the

          4  infrastructure in place, and in fact, just this past

          5  couple of weeks, DFTA, the City Department of Aging,

          6  has worked out a small demonstration for about 60

          7  homes that are owned by low-income seniors and what

          8  is called a coordinated effort with the State

          9  Division of Housing Community Renewal Weatherization

         10  Program, and matching City dollars, DFTA dollars,

         11  together with DHCR weatherization dollars, we now

         12  are able to do even more senior homes than we were

         13  able to do before.

         14                 And so the mechanisms are there for

         15  getting a very high impact and return on investment

         16  of City dollars, using the existing network, the

         17  administrative structure that the state has there.

         18                 If the City does put up dollars, we

         19  can also leverage more private dollars, as I talked

         20  about before. And I think this is a great

         21  opportunity to get a dollar from the bank for every

         22  dollar you put up.

         23                 You might -- I suggested some numbers

         24  here. I think if you go about it, I would suggest a

         25  pilot program. I would suggest a pilot program that
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          2  perhaps includes an expanded concept of

          3  weatherization. We in the field have argued quite a

          4  bit that while we are in the home, we ought to be

          5  doing water conservation, as well as energy

          6  conservation while we are there. We walk past leaky

          7  faucets, inefficient toilets all the time, we ought

          8  to be doing other environmental things. We do carbon

          9  monoxide and a limited amount of health and safety

         10  testing. There is quite a bit we can do while we are

         11  there, we are already there, we ought to make it an

         12  efficient program.

         13                 The federal state program puts up

         14  about $2,000 per unit for weatherization, challenge

         15  the City to come up with $3,000 per unit, do a pilot

         16  program of 2,000 apartments, it will cost only $6

         17  million. It isn't much. You get tremendous impact in

         18  the housing field with very little invested. Tell me

         19  where the repair or City Housing program will only

         20  cost $2,000 a unit or $3,000. Put up $6 million, let

         21  us show you what 2,000 apartments will look like

         22  after they are weatherized. I think after you take a

         23  look at the results and monitor that, we won't have

         24  to have hearings, you will want to put more money up

         25  because you will see how good the program is, and
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          2  what is better than not having to have more

          3  hearings?

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: I am going to be

          6  honest with you. I am still lost.

          7                 MR. CHERRY: Okay, let me --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Let me tell you

          9  where I am lost.

         10                 MR. CHERRY: Okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: You said give you

         12  $100 million and you will be able to do the job. I

         13  am looking at Ms. Smith in a four-family house

         14  somewhere on the tip of Throggsneck, how does she

         15  get to you?

         16                 MR. CHERRY: Every community in the

         17  City and every county in the state has a subgrantee

         18  that is responsible for doing weatherization in the

         19  community. Each of the subgrantees, and I know you

         20  will hear from Northern Manhattan today, has their

         21  mechanism for getting the word out to the community.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Are you a

         23  subgrantee?

         24                 MR. CHERRY: We are a subgrantee.

         25                 And we work in a broad -- we are
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          2  Citywide and we focus particularly in areas of

          3  Brooklyn and Queens. We work with the community

          4  groups in those areas, since it is a wide area, we

          5  put the word out through senior centers and

          6  community organizations, and word of mouth, and I

          7  think it could become more evenly done, but word of

          8  mouth generally brings buildings in.

          9                 Some people are fortunate to get into

         10  that loop and hear about the program.

         11                 One of the things that has always

         12  been a balancing act for the state and for those of

         13  us in weatherization, is how much public publicity

         14  do you want to give to a program when you are so

         15  short of dollars. And the waiting list that every

         16  subgrantee has goes over a year and a half long

         17  usually. So, you don't really want to go out and

         18  advertise and that is why a lot of people don't know

         19  about the program, because we are really short on

         20  the dollars.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: That's

         22  reasonable.

         23                 MR. CHERRY: Yes.

         24                 The question you asked about how much

         25  an energy audit costs, it is not an easy answer. The
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          2  reason is that we get our staff reimbursed, so we do

          3  audits with the staff, we don't have a price that

          4  the state pays us for audit.

          5                 The audits will vary. If it is a one-

          6  to four-family home it's a lot less time consuming

          7  than one that is a multiple dwelling.

          8                 I would say that it depends on who,

          9  what subgrantee and the kind of time it takes, but

         10  an audit for a one- to four-family home should be in

         11  the range of two to three-hundred dollars of course.

         12  And an apartment building, let's say a modest

         13  30-unit building might be in the $2,000 range, just

         14  to give you an idea. Other people here may charge

         15  different amounts, some less or more.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: So you guys would

         17  be able to go in there, a certain number of tenants

         18  in the building have to meet a certain income

         19  guideline?

         20                 MR. CHERRY: Yes. They have to meet

         21  what are called the HEAP guidelines, that is a

         22  particularly low level, sort of little below the

         23  Section 8 level actually. So they are particularly

         24  low-income folks. Two-thirds of an apartment

         25  building has to be occupied by those eligible people
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          2  for the whole apartment building to be eligible.

          3                 In a one- to four-family home, if the

          4  owner is eligible then it depends on -- the home is

          5  eligible unless it is an owner/investor and she has

          6  got tenants and then the tenant eligibility also

          7  depends.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you.

          9                 MR. CHERRY: Are there any other

         10  questions?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 MR. CHERRY: I look forward to the 100

         14  million. Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: David Hepinstall,

         16  who is going to answer all my questions.

         17                 MR. HEPINSTALL: I am joined by Dan

         18  Rieber from Northern Manhattan also.

         19                 I have prepared written testimony

         20  that you also have, and I am going to do somewhat

         21  the way Rich did and refer to some of it.

         22                 My name is Dave Hepinstall, I am the

         23  Executive Director of the Association for Energy

         24  Affordability, and all the weatherization

         25  subgrantees in New York City are members of our
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          2  organization. And we also have responsibilities to

          3  do energy audits in multi-family buildings. Rich

          4  Cherry's agency is a self-auditing agency and so is

          5  Northern Manhattan and Harlem Community Development

          6  Corporation, so there are three self-auditing

          7  agencies, all the other agencies were members. We do

          8  the audits in the multi-family buildings for those

          9  agencies.

         10                 And I really want to thank you on

         11  behalf of the entire network of weatherization

         12  agencies for the opportunity to tell you something

         13  about the weatherization program.

         14                 Basically it works through a

         15  community-based agency and provides energy

         16  efficiency in building improvements to eligible

         17  small homes and multi-family buildings in the

         18  communities that you represent.

         19                 Despite the multiple and cost

         20  effective benefits weatherization brings to your

         21  communities, it is an underpublicized program and

         22  you and many others on the Council may not be very

         23  familiar with it.

         24                 So, a little bit of background.

         25                 Weatherization grew out of America's
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          2  desire to make more efficient and affordable use of

          3  energy resources, while reducing our dependence on

          4  oil. In the mid-1970s, the federal government's

          5  concern that high fuel and utility costs were

          6  creating a difficult and even dangerous situation

          7  for low-income people living in inferior housing and

          8  on fixed incomes, such as the elderly and disabled,

          9  led to the creation of the Weatherization Assistance

         10  Program.

         11                 Today, as you know, Weatherization is

         12  administered by the Department of Energy, usually in

         13  most states with the assistance of LIHEAP money,

         14  what we call HEAP program, and in most all cases

         15  there are private monies and New York State monies

         16  leveraged by community agencies from building

         17  owners, utility companies and other sources.

         18                 In New York City we have typically

         19  generated between 35 and 50 percent of all

         20  multi-family building project costs from the

         21  building owners.

         22                 We have also had a relationship with

         23  Con Edison throughout the 1990s, okay, for the last

         24  seven years really running a utility low income

         25  energy efficiency program with Con Ed dollars coming
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          2  in.

          3                 In the early 1980sm agencies

          4  providing weatherization services in the Downstate

          5  area in New York City formed a membership

          6  organization then called the New York City

          7  weatherization coalition, and now called the

          8  Association for Energy Affordability.

          9                 All of these agencies are direct

         10  subgrantees of the program so the have a contract

         11  relationship with the State Energy Services Bureau,

         12  at the same time, most of them are community-based

         13  housing agencies.

         14                 In fact to skip ahead for a couple of

         15  pages into this, I have a listing of the agencies so

         16  you have a sense of the range of the programs. In

         17  the Bronx we have Banana Kelly Community Improvement

         18  Association; Bronx Shepherds Restoration

         19  Corporation; Corporation for Youth Energy Corps.,

         20  Inc.; Northwest Bronx Community and Clergy

         21  Coalition.

         22                 In Brooklyn: Bedford Stuyvesant

         23  Restoration Corporation; Crown Heights Jewish

         24  Community Council; ODA, Opportunity Development

         25  Association; People's Firehouse, Inc.; Sunset Park
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          2  Redevelopment Committee; Community Environmental

          3  Center.

          4                 In Manhattan: Harlem Community

          5  Development Corporation; Housing Conservation

          6  Coordinators, Inc.; Interfaith Adopt-a-building,

          7  Inc.; Northern Manhattan Improvement Corporation.

          8                 In Queens: HANAC, Inc.; Mergert

          9  Community Development Corporation, and is primarily

         10  in the Rockaway Peninsula, but also serves Jamaica;

         11  and Community Environmental Center, Inc., which

         12  serves the remainder of Queens.

         13                 In Staten Island we have Northfield

         14  Community Local Development Corporation.

         15                 So, that gives the spread of the

         16  local agencies, and the dollars are in fact

         17  allocated based on the distribution of low-income

         18  population throughout the City. Okay, so the service

         19  territories of each of those agencies determine the

         20  amount of money that they receive, and that is

         21  heating degree days plus low-income population.

         22                 In the kinds of services I mention at

         23  the top of page two, we should remember it is health

         24  and safety, as well as energy efficiency, so it is

         25  combustion safety and detecting and correcting
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          2  carbon monoxide leaks and it's a lot of in

          3  multi-family upgrading and replacing heating and

          4  distribution systems, but it is also insulating

          5  roofs and walls. In recent years we just took some

          6  folks on a couple of field visits seeing some of the

          7  work being done, it is clear that, for example, we

          8  are doing much more in roof insulation and

          9  multi-family buildings that have been done before,

         10  in part because we identify that as a real source of

         11  potential energy efficiency and currently of loss of

         12  waste and we finally have a decent set of

         13  contractors.

         14                 And I should just mention that

         15  generally in heating system work we use contractors

         16  in roof work and window work. We typically also use

         17  contractors, although one agency does its own window

         18  replacement. In a lot of the distribution work the

         19  agencies have their own staff, in a lot of the low

         20  cost they have their own staff and all of the small

         21  homes they typically have their own crews who are

         22  doing it as well.

         23                 But in the big system work it is

         24  heating system contractors.

         25                 One thing I don't mention in the
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          2  testimony, but ADA has had for the last four years

          3  something called a Clean Boilers Program, it was

          4  initially funded by the US EPA, Environmental

          5  Protection Administration and NYCERTA, to conduct

          6  training for contractors who do boiler replacement

          7  and for also the field inspectors from the agencies

          8  to ensure that quality work, and back to Peter

          9  Judd's comment on this, that quality installations

         10  are done, the right kind of controls are included

         11  and there is a real expectation that training on

         12  maintenance will be held by the contractor and then

         13  the field inspectors for quality inspection, they

         14  know what the difference between of a placement in

         15  effect that is the equivalent control versus

         16  something that is really a way that the contractor

         17  is just trying to avoid doing the right thing.

         18                 So that has been a very important

         19  part of the process of assuring that we meet the

         20  kinds of concerns that Peter Judd had expressed.

         21                 I also list what these retrofits

         22  really produce in terms of benefits. As a reminder,

         23  it is clearly health and safety and comfort in the

         24  dwellings for low-income people, as well as

         25  promoting the energy efficiency and the development
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          2  of new building improvement methods, improved

          3  housing stock in neighborhood revitalization, and it

          4  also stimulates economic development employment

          5  because we use local contractors and vendors and

          6  workers, and we leverage private dollars through the

          7  partnerships with the building owners and utilities

          8  and other housing groups. Sometimes we have in fact

          9  worked with 7A and with 8A, so if not through a

         10  program with HPD, but instead the 7A administrators

         11  or the HPD coordinators of 7A sometimes reaching out

         12  to an agency and saying can you bring in some

         13  dollars, but it is not a coordinated program.

         14                 And typically, as I said, the entire

         15  drive to have owner investment required came not

         16  from the federal government or from the State but

         17  from local subgrantees in New York City, and it

         18  became, first it was a contribution, then a

         19  requirement of 25 percent, now it's a 35 percent

         20  requirement, not because the state asked for it but

         21  because the subgrantees said we want to require 35

         22  percent. And typically it has been a one-to-one

         23  match or better.

         24                 So, the critical issue I think that

         25  you are facing, I covered it briefly at the bottom

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            48

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ABANDONMENT

          2  of this next page, and that is the eligibility

          3  question.

          4                 We are governed by federal

          5  weatherization guidelines as to what constitutes our

          6  eligibility. That is really -- it says 125 percent

          7  of poverty federally, or the State HEAP guidelines.

          8  In New York State currently that is 150 percent of

          9  poverty. It used to be, until four years ago when

         10  they reduced HEAP funds, 150 percent of poverty or

         11  60 percent of the state median income. Right now the

         12  poverty level in New York City, the reality is it is

         13  like 43 percent or so, not 60 percent. So, this is

         14  really the poor. And 150 percent of poverty in New

         15  York City, given the cost of living in New York

         16  City, is a pretty low level. It really barely hits

         17  what we consider to be the working poor, okay? And

         18  with welfare reform and people being knocked off

         19  public assistance and so forth, the reality is it is

         20  harder for a multi-family building in a working

         21  neighborhood to qualify with the 66 percent rule.

         22                 So, there have been a couple of major

         23  challenges we are facing, particularly in the kinds

         24  of buildings that Anne is talking about, with the

         25  relatively small, the building owner who has a few
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          2  buildings and they are small, they are four to 12

          3  units, the eligibility in that situation is not an

          4  easy thing to ensure that you are going to have, for

          5  some of those communities the eligibility isn't

          6  there, okay?

          7                 And the need is, to pull back and

          8  think about the total dollars, in New York City

          9  right now we are talking about, the range has been

         10  from 9, almost $10 million to about $12 million the

         11  last couple of years. The statewide program had been

         12  $45 million and cut down to $25 million and we are

         13  getting about $10 million of that. By the formula

         14  because of minimum funding requirements by county

         15  upstate, we should be getting 48 percent based on

         16  need, we are getting 36 percent because of the

         17  attempt to ensure that there is an adequate minimum

         18  upstate.

         19                 Some steps have been taken this year

         20  to adjust that, but it is still true, we would only

         21  be getting a little more than $10 million for the

         22  City.

         23                 The reality is we could easily run a

         24  weatherization program for $60 million in New York

         25  City, given the need. The need -- and what Rich
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          2  mentioned before in response to your question about

          3  how does somebody know about it: Well, the reality

          4  is, people like Northern Manhattan, they put a sign

          5  on the building saying Northern Manhattan

          6  Weatherization Program, they mention the state, et

          7  cetera, that is a major way. Going out to community

          8  organizations, going to the community board, letting

          9  people know you are inundated, they would have ten

         10  times as many as what they could possibly do, but

         11  wise investment of additional City dollars, okay, to

         12  address areas of the greatest need and where there

         13  are landlords coming into Housing Court because of

         14  violations, I mean the connection that we can make,

         15  if City money didn't have to follow federal

         16  guidelines, if you were allowed to go below the 66

         17  percent, so you could do any building in a

         18  low-income neighborhood that has got more than 40

         19  percent low income, in my view, should be able to be

         20  part of the target, okay?

         21                 In fact, in my view you should do

         22  low-income neighborhoods. I used to work for the

         23  City for CDA and we targeted neighborhoods that are

         24  eligible, I think we should target neighborhoods.

         25                 This federal government, I have
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          2  raised this for ten years with the federal

          3  government, they say but it is only New York City

          4  where that would work. Because census tracks in

          5  community districts in New York City, it is possible

          6  to target community districts. The rest of the

          7  country you include too many upper income buildings

          8  if you do that kind of targeting.

          9                 But we have an affiliate of business,

         10  an affiliate called Energy and Water Conservation

         11  Services, and that program with the City's DEP, all

         12  of our agencies can refer and have been referring

         13  landlords to that program for the water conservation

         14  work, and that program is not required

         15  weatherization eligibility, so we have targeted

         16  communities. So we did all of upper Manhattan, tied

         17  it into the Toilet Rebate Program as well, so I

         18  would suggest for the City to do it, based on

         19  community districts that are eligible, that are low

         20  income community districts, and the housing in those

         21  districts ended, therefore it doesn't have to be

         22  matched with weatherization. But you can use the

         23  weatherization infrastructure. We have got

         24  autocapacity, we have got field construction

         25  management capacity, okay we have got the training
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          2  capacity and the education capacity with building

          3  owners, with supers, okay, with tenants in the

          4  buildings, and I think the idea of tying it to the

          5  Housing Court program and tying it to the idea of

          6  when, as I understood from Anne, you know, last year

          7  the whole notion of a fine being levied but that

          8  fine being reduced if they step forward and do work,

          9  is a wise approach.

         10                 And to require owner investment,

         11  okay, is necessary, to make sure that the building

         12  owner feels the responsibility.

         13                 What we have found with

         14  weatherization is dollars that stimulate actin by

         15  having a government investment and doing the right

         16  thing, matched by an owner investment just makes

         17  sense.

         18                 So, I would suggest using the

         19  weatherization network as the base, as the

         20  infrastructure, and I think a pilot makes sense only

         21  if it is -- we know the need is there. We know we

         22  have the capacity, we don't need to have a pilot. I

         23  think the question is what scope would be possible

         24  in terms of the amount of money that could come

         25  forward. I think something in the range of $5
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          2  million or $6 million is something that would begin

          3  to show others the importance of being able to do

          4  this. I think tying it to the small building owners

          5  who have few properties, who don't know a lot about

          6  what the best thing to do is, who I think could

          7  respond to good education, okay, an education that

          8  has to be targeted in the appropriate language of

          9  the building owners so we can really get them as

         10  partners. Because the weatherization perspective is

         11  a community development perspective, it's a

         12  partnership. And we don't treat, although sometimes

         13  we think of some building owners as scum bags, the

         14  reality is we treat them as partners, and we have to

         15  get their partnership and their working together

         16  with it, and by putting federal dollars in we have

         17  been able to do it, but we are too restricted. We

         18  can't respond to all their needs. I think we can

         19  increase their education program and outreach, allow

         20  community boards more fully to be aware of it. The

         21  only way we can do that is with more money, and the

         22  last four years we have been dealing with first the

         23  47 percent cut four years ago, that has been only

         24  slightly changed in the last three years.

         25                 So, I would like to thank you again,
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          2  and if there are any other questions.

          3                 Oh, one question you did have that I

          4  will mention, you said nationally where else is a

          5  City doing something. A couple of examples in

          6  Buffalo, actually there is a program called The Warm

          7  Program, which really it is City dollars for primary

          8  repair dollars, because often we are limited in

          9  weatherization dollars to basically the heating

         10  system, so the electric and plumbing systems often

         11  really need to be upgraded in those same buildings,

         12  and our dollars can be used to do that. So, costly,

         13  if you could add $3,000 to $5,000 for those kinds of

         14  things, as they do in Buffalo, it can make a real

         15  difference.

         16                 There are also some other urban areas

         17  that have done something similar in putting,

         18  deciding to put community development block grant

         19  funds in, and the State of Washington has actually

         20  combined their CDBG program and Virginia and North

         21  Carolina, some other states have combined the

         22  operation of the program in this same agency, and

         23  there is a potential of it with DHCR now being a

         24  place where weatherization is, but HPD has not

         25  really been part of the process in the last few
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          2  years.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: I think you

          4  mentioned something to do with the TIL buildings, do

          5  they get weatherized as part of their general

          6  apparatus as far as being turned over?

          7                 MR. HEPINSTALL: If a TIL building

          8  reaches out right now to a weatherization agency, it

          9  is potentially eligible, and some TIL buildings have

         10  gone through weatherization. In the process, before

         11  they get to full ownership, they have been able to

         12  be weatherized.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: It is my

         14  understanding that they are undergoing, they get

         15  what, $50,000 or so per building or something like

         16  that, where the major systems are done before it is

         17  turned over?

         18                 MS. PASMANICK: That does not include

         19  weatherization.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: That does not

         21  include weatherization, okay.

         22                 Approximately how long, when a

         23  building is weatherized, how long is it good for?

         24                 MR. HEPINSTALL: Well, most of them,

         25  as the assumptions are depends by measure, but on
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          2  average the measures are 20 years.

          3                 And we have a requirement in terms of

          4  calculating the savings to investment ratio that in

          5  fact the measure will pay for itself in the life of

          6  the measure, okay? That is a requirement in terms of

          7  in the audit.

          8                 The reality is, even though that is

          9  what is supposed to happen, and with good

         10  construction management that should happen, but

         11  there is a question of maintenance, and one of the

         12  things the weatherization has also been prevented by

         13  the National federal rules is some sting involved

         14  with the buildings, and sometimes, we have now been

         15  recommending energy management systems be included,

         16  which will allow tracking by the owner, problems

         17  with the building going forward and so poor

         18  maintenance can lead to problems, and I have to say

         19  that HPD has been and was famous for in the past

         20  putting in the five-year boiler, the one that would

         21  die in five years, in part because it wasn't

         22  installed well and part because it wasn't maintained

         23  well. That is the reality that the new boiler didn't

         24  last.

         25                 In our experience that is not what
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          2  happens with weatherization. But it requires

          3  training of the supers to know how to pay attention

          4  to the work that was done.

          5                 We also try to ensure that work is

          6  done on a building that will help maintain it over

          7  time, so somehow safety-related work or some other

          8  non-weatherization work can be there if it is for

          9  the purpose of protecting the measure, which is one

         10  of the reasons why we have gotten more into doing

         11  owners investing in new roofs, to protect measures.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Absolutely.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 Dan Rieber. State your name for the

         15  record.

         16                 MR. RIEBER: My name is Dan Rieber, I

         17  am the Weatherization Director for the Northern

         18  Manhattan Improvement Corporation.

         19                 I want to thank the Committee for

         20  giving us the opportunity to testify, in order to

         21  inform the Committee about the Weatherization

         22  Assistance Program.

         23                 I would like to present a short

         24  overview of the Weatherization Program at the

         25  Northern Manhattan Improvement Corporation, and
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          2  would then be happy to answer any questions the

          3  Committee members may have about the agency, the

          4  housing stock we serve and any technical issues as

          5  well.

          6                 The Weatherization Program is a

          7  federal energy conservation program for low-income

          8  people.

          9                 In a multi-family building 66 percent

         10  of the tenants must qualify as low income using the

         11  Home Energy Assistance Program income guidelines, in

         12  order for the entire building to be served.

         13                 The building owner is required to

         14  contribute a minimum of 35 percent of the entire job

         15  cost and it is not uncommon for an owner to

         16  contribute 50 percent. All owners of multi-family

         17  buildings are required to sign a restrictive

         18  regulatory agreement which prohibits them from

         19  raising rents for the costs of the weatherization

         20  project, displacing tenants or unjustly enriching

         21  themselves from the improvements.

         22                 Northern Manhattan Improvement

         23  Corporation has served low-income apartments in

         24  City-owned buildings, HDFCs, Housing Development

         25  Fund Corporations, 7A managed buildings and
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          2  privately-owned buildings, several of which are

          3  owned by minority landlords.

          4                 The program is voluntary and work can

          5  only be performed in income-eligible buildings.

          6                 The Northern Manhattan Improvement

          7  Corporation received its first weatherization

          8  contract from New York State under DOE5 in 1981.

          9  Since that first contract in 1981, through February

         10  of 1999, Northern Manhattan Improvement Corporation

         11  has received $14,299,125 in weatherization funds.

         12  With these funds we have weatherized 8,814

         13  low-income apartments in 315 buildings within the

         14  neighborhoods of Washington Heights, Inwood, Marble

         15  Hill, Harlem, and the lower east side.

         16                 In 1991, Northern Manhattan

         17  Improvement Corporation was designated as a

         18  Manhattan-wide weatherization agency and has since

         19  served the areas of East Central and West Harlem, as

         20  well as the lower east side.

         21                 Northern Manhattan Improvement

         22  Corporation attempts to treat all areas of heat loss

         23  within a particular building in the most cost

         24  effective manner, as David mentioned before, with

         25  the savings to investment ratio as our guide.
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          2                 The agency generally implements those

          3  measures which achieve the highest energy savings at

          4  the lowest cost to the program.

          5                 Improvements are made to prevent heat

          6  loss through the building's envelope and improve the

          7  overall efficiency of the heating system. Immediate

          8  benefits to the tenants and building owner result

          9  from the installation of new heating systems, the

         10  upgrade of existing heating systems, energy

         11  efficient lighting, energy efficient refrigerators,

         12  roof installation and high performance replacement

         13  windows.

         14                 Other measures include pipe

         15  insulation, domestic hot water conservation, roof

         16  repair and reduction of stack affect.

         17                 Furthermore, health and safety issues

         18  such as carbon monoxide detectors and smoke alarms

         19  are installed in each apartment.

         20                 Where necessary, asbestos abatement

         21  is also performed usually as part of a boiler

         22  replacement.

         23                 Northern Manhattan Improvement

         24  Corporation's Weatherization program has leveraged

         25  over $3,411,416 from building owners, 7A

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            61

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ABANDONMENT

          2  administrators, Housing Development Fund Corporation

          3  and HPD.

          4                 These additional funds help extend

          5  the scope of work in a building so that all energy

          6  measures can be addressed.

          7                 From 1992 to 1996, Northern Manhattan

          8  Improvement Corporation leveraged over $608,700 from

          9  Con Edison as part of the coordinated utility

         10  low-income emergency efficiency program, which David

         11  mentioned prior, which provided for energy efficient

         12  lighting in all buildings served and all other

         13  energy measures in gas and electrically heated

         14  buildings.

         15                 Since 1996, the low-income

         16  refrigerator replacement program has leveraged over

         17  $40,000 from Con Edison as well, that is just at our

         18  agency.

         19                 I thank you, and I would just like to

         20  say that I worked at HPD in the Energy Conservation

         21  Division in 1988 as a summer intern, thanks to Peter

         22  Judd, and I am here today because of that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Let me ask you a

         24  question. This is in the perspective of the

         25  landlord.
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          2                 You said that a certain number of

          3  tenants have to be income eligible in order to

          4  participate, and then there is another level where

          5  the owner has to pay 50 percent, up to 50 percent;

          6  is that correct?

          7                 MR. RIEBER: It's a minimum of 35. He

          8  can pay more than 50. But typically we start at 50.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay.

         10                 MR. HEPINSTALL: Any multi-family

         11  building.

         12                 MR. RIEBER: Five units or more.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay. And you

         14  said he cannot raise the rent to compensate for the

         15  expense that he has.

         16                 MR. RIEBER: That's correct. No major

         17  capital improvements as a result of the work that we

         18  perform.

         19                 Normal rent increases as a result of

         20  leases expiring and so on are --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Is he permitted

         22  to amortize it?

         23                 MR. HEPINSTALL: Permitted to get

         24  J-51. J-51 is the thing that they have been most

         25  interested in, given the note MIC rent increase.
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          2                 But typically the trade off, in

          3  effect he is getting at minimum one dollar for every

          4  dollar he puts in, that is cutting in half his cost,

          5  which when you combine that with the J-51, that's

          6  really made sense for owners, it's a very good

          7  investment.

          8                 MR. RIEBER: My experience is that

          9  when we tell an owner that they are eligible for the

         10  J-51, that's sort of one of the hooks.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay, because

         12  that wasn't brought up and I want to make sure we

         13  have all of that on the table.

         14                 Here is another question. Is there

         15  any logical tie-ins between a call to the HEAP help

         16  line and the work that you guys do?

         17                 MR. HEPINSTALL: In the existing

         18  relationship there is no automatic call from that

         19  hot line to any of our agencies.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Would it help if

         21  there is? Should it be?

         22                 MR. HEPINSTALL: Only if there was

         23  some City money following it because --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: The caseload is

         25  high enough.
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          2                 MR. HEPINSTALL: Yes. Because the

          3  reality is we have enough of a waiting list of

          4  buildings that are eligible and the only way it

          5  makes sense to just be, their responding is some

          6  money to target it. But we could target doing, you

          7  know, something less than total weatherization, with

          8  some money with the infrastructure we have in place.

          9                 So, it is not necessary to do a new

         10  program that is the full scale weatherization. I

         11  mean, just as Anne was mentioning energy audit, some

         12  places of just paying for an audit that would give

         13  them a sense of what is a wise investment, okay,

         14  makes sense, responding to some repair. I mean, the

         15  City should have a better emergency repair program

         16  and I don't think our infrastructure would be the

         17  equivalent of meeting all the needs of the City's

         18  emergency repair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay, thank you.

         20                 Did everybody who wanted to speak

         21  speak? Okay, I want to thank you for coming and

         22  bringing these points. This is an area that I don't

         23  think any of us are specialists on and the purpose

         24  of this is to learn more about it. Some of us

         25  thought that weatherization was maybe checking the
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          2  window, the boiler and putting in some home --

          3                 MR. HEPINSTALL: Right. That is the

          4  image of the late'70s.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Right. And it's a

          6  lot more.

          7                 Yes, in the back. Come to the table

          8  if you are going to speak. And you are going to fill

          9  out a form also so we can have you for the record.

         10                 State your name for the record, sir.

         11                 MR. RICE: My name is Wendell Rice,

         12  and I am the Weatherization Director for the Bedford

         13  Stuyvesant Restoration Corporation.

         14                 That last question about people who

         15  are calling with no heat, somehow or another it is

         16  kind of, I know in Brooklyn an honor who doesn't

         17  have heat and a tenant calls in and says we don't

         18  have any heat in the building, they seem to have

         19  some way of finding their way around to

         20  weatherization agencies. I don't know if it is word

         21  of mouth, but I have had quite a few landlords who

         22  --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: It is the

         24  landlord that finds you.

         25                 MR. RICE: Well, yes, the landlord
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          2  normally finds us. And I think the weatherization

          3  program is doing a lot for this city in that

          4  respect, because I don't -- the City will give them

          5  a fine of $250, for how many days, you know, those

          6  tenants got to sit there with no heat, you see? When

          7  in the weatherization, once we find out that they

          8  don't have any heat, if the building, as they

          9  mentioned earlier, qualifies, we get to work on the

         10  situation.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Right. Well, one

         12  of the problems is you can get the call today and

         13  the inspector is not available until maybe two,

         14  three days down the road.

         15                 MR. HEPINSTALL: They usually get

         16  there faster.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay, it's good

         18  to know.

         19                 MR. RIEBER: I would just like to say,

         20  in terms of how do the owners find out about us, in

         21  the case of Northern Manhattan, most if it is word

         22  of mouth through the various networks that building

         23  owners have to get information, but it is not

         24  unusual either for tenants to prod a building owner,

         25  especially if the tenants are organized and our
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          2  agency does tenant organizing as well, it is not

          3  always a direct relationship from our agency but it

          4  is not uncommon. And that prodding can be threat of

          5  a rent strike or a rent strike that makes the owner

          6  come, because they have been less than willing to

          7  provide the services needed to the building.

          8                 Once they come to us, they see what a

          9  great deal it is and, you know, they most of the

         10  time will go forward if the building qualifies.

         11                 MR. HEPINSTALL: One of the unique

         12  things, to some degree, of Northern Manhattan is

         13  they have used the strategy of tenant organizing and

         14  tenants sometimes, in fact they are doing rent

         15  withholding, and sometimes they in fact put the

         16  pressure on the building owner, we will release that

         17  money if you will do the work.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Yes.

         19                 MR. HEPINSTALL: And coming to

         20  weatherization they start saying, a-ha, in fact I

         21  could save money by investing money and all of a

         22  sudden get access to that money that has been

         23  withheld by the tenant. So it made sense for

         24  everybody. And I have seen owners that then learned

         25  from that and went into other buildings where
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          2  tenants weren't organized and invested the money as

          3  well.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: I will let my

          5  counsel talk.

          6                 MS. NASSER: It is not strictly a

          7  weatherization question, but maybe weatherization

          8  perspective.

          9                 We have been getting a number of

         10  calls from seniors who are calling into the office,

         11  their complaint is not that there is no heat, but

         12  that the heat in the buildings is not sufficient

         13  allegedly and they will call in, you know, to have

         14  the appropriate inspector to come down, allegedly

         15  the heat is meeting whatever the appropriate

         16  threshold, but the tenants are still cold. They are

         17  generally seniors. I actually do know that they are

         18  trying to organize and mobilize to perhaps get the

         19  minimum heat level that is required at the state

         20  level raised.

         21                 Do you have any comments with regards

         22  to that, or perhaps even in this situation, I don't

         23  know, maybe there are more weatherization

         24  techniques, maybe to the individual units that need

         25  to be done. But it is a growing concern.
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          2                 MR. HEPINSTALL: I think we each have

          3  things to say. That is a very commonly identified

          4  issue, let me put it that way.

          5                 One thing, it is clear that a lot of

          6  the buildings that come into weatherization, the

          7  distribution systems are poor. A lot of the existing

          8  controls and mechanisms that are in these buildings

          9  for monitoring what the temperature is are not good.

         10  An awful lot of building owners and supers also

         11  aren't necessarily totally always following the law,

         12  in terms of ensuring that you have not evenly

         13  distributed heat. But if you don't have a good

         14  mechanism for tracking what the outdoor temperature

         15  is and the top floor temperature is in the apartment

         16  and so forth, then you are not as aware.

         17                 We have got better systems that we

         18  install that allows -- and Dan can talk about the

         19  kinds of things that we do install to make it so

         20  that those problems are less likely.

         21                 Also, I have to say, however, we have

         22  been doing for the last four years a research

         23  project where we are monitoring buildings with

         24  actually data loggers in the buildings and sensors

         25  in top floor and bottom floor apartments and we find
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          2  a major problem, that Peter Judd also noted before

          3  and in the past, not in this letter, the overheated

          4  apartments. We have such overheated apartments and

          5  such stack affect in some of these apartments that

          6  are overheated because people are opening the

          7  windows in some apartments and driving the heat in a

          8  way that there is overheating. And the problem with

          9  overheating is the perception of whether I am cold

         10  or not that a senior has is what was I an hour ago,

         11  what am I now? If the temperature changed, okay,

         12  from warmer to colder, is the thing that is

         13  identified.

         14                 And often that same apartment will

         15  not be underheated from a legal perspective, it will

         16  be however underheated from what it was an hour ago

         17  and the temperature changed. That is a distribution

         18  system issue too.

         19                 So we address those kinds of problems

         20  all the time. They are not something that you can

         21  just individually address in one building without

         22  addressing the building however.

         23                 MR. RIEBER: Yes, I would like to

         24  speak to that.

         25                 A lot of the buildings that we go
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          2  into before we do work have these distribution

          3  problems, and it is really important for a

          4  superintendent of a building to understand how the

          5  building works, and you know, whether a steam valve

          6  in the basement that controls one line, when we

          7  interview the tenants, you know, that bathroom was

          8  never warm. I have been living here for 20 years,

          9  that bathroom is never warm. Only for us to go into

         10  the basement and see that there is an isolation

         11  valve on the steam line that has been closed for 20

         12  years. I mean, this is what we do, you know, we

         13  uncover mysteries that help the buildings become

         14  warmer.

         15                 And the perception issue is a problem

         16  for even people who are not seniors. We go into a

         17  lot of buildings where there is excessive

         18  overheating and if there is overheating there is

         19  going to be fuel used that didn't necessarily have

         20  to, but that doesn't mean that you save the fuel at

         21  the expense of comfort, and so again it is

         22  understanding how the control mechanism for the

         23  boiler works so that on different kinds of days you

         24  provide enough heat and on other kinds of days you

         25  don't provide too much heat.
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          2                 On a day when it is 53 degrees

          3  outside, you don't need to provide the amount of

          4  heat required for when it is 13 degrees outside, and

          5  these are the kinds of things that we can address

          6  when we go into the buildings.

          7                 MR. RICE: Just to add on to what is

          8  being stated here right now, is that you can install

          9  new windows throughout a building, new boiler, but

         10  if you have drafts, I call it a draft, coming into

         11  that particular structure, that building is going to

         12  be cold.

         13                 When you go into a building and you

         14  can feel the heat but you put your hand on the bed

         15  and the bed is cold, that is telling you something,

         16  there is draft coming in. You want to stop the cold

         17  air from coming in through the basement or the

         18  cellar and keep it from going out the roof. Maybe

         19  they talked about it earlier, that is why we make

         20  sure we insulate the roofs of all of the buildings

         21  that we do, pack them with insulation, and we air

         22  seal the basement so that the air, the draft cannot

         23  come in to the building envelope and that is very

         24  important.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Do you do any
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          2  pointing?

          3                 MR. RIEBER: Often it is part of the

          4  owner's contribution to the project, so when we do

          5  the energy audit, we often find problems with the

          6  outside envelope where pointing is required, even

          7  rebuilding of parapet walls on roofs. And so, if it

          8  is necessary we will incorporate it into the scope

          9  and it will be made part of the owner's scope of

         10  work. Generally that is pretty cost prohibitive for

         11  us to address, because often that can be quite

         12  expensive. And that is how we do it in Northern

         13  Manhattan.

         14                 MR. HEPINSTALL: Councilman Warden,

         15  just one other thing I would like to mention.

         16                 You I think are typical of the New

         17  York City elected official or government official

         18  who knew somebody about the program in the seventies

         19  and has an initial perception, this was a CETA

         20  Program, CETA workers, doing windows or weather

         21  stripping. This program has become a technic, not

         22  only state-of-the-art but on the leading edge, okay,

         23  cutting edge in terms of new technology. And it is a

         24  very different program at a time that I think the

         25  public perception, even informed public perception,
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          2  has not kept up with the reality.

          3                 It is why in fact we have learned so

          4  much about building science, the leaders in sort of

          5  the building science industry are weatherization or

          6  former weatherization people going out and making

          7  money in other places, but it is time to apply that

          8  knowledge in a broader base than just the

          9  weatherization buildings that we can do it in now.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Well, that is why

         11  we are here today.

         12                 MR. RIEBER: Also, I would just like

         13  to speak to the temperature perception issue again.

         14                 Often what happens is when we finish

         15  in a building and, you know, Dave can talk in more

         16  detail, to the multi-family research project, we

         17  could go into an apartment and a top floor before we

         18  got there may have been anywhere between 80 and 90

         19  degrees in the wintertime, and when we come out of

         20  there, now there may be hovering around 75 degrees

         21  which is quite comfortable. But nevertheless, there

         22  is a perception that I am colder now than I was

         23  before you guys got here, and you know, we have to

         24  remind people again of what the legal limits are and

         25  that if we find with our temperature probes that it
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          2  is in fact 75, it is not 68, it could be colder, but

          3  it is just a matter of it being a little bit cooler

          4  now than it was before, and that what you were used

          5  to before was really not normal. It is really too

          6  warm, it is not really healthy because the air is

          7  too dry and allows for sickness to breed, and you

          8  know, so there is some education about that as well

          9  that goes on.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Again, I want to

         11  thank all for participating. I thank the Committee,

         12  my Counsel and my Policy Analyst.  We have been

         13  trying to get this hearing on for some time and

         14  through just a bunch of things that came up, it took

         15  awhile. But this won't be the last time. I think we

         16  need to further explore this issue and see what

         17  areas of public policy we can impact.

         18                 MR. HEPINSTALL: And if you need any

         19  additional information --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: We know how to

         21  find you.

         22                 MR. HEPINSTALL: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: The hearing is

         24  adjourned.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 3:30 p.m.)
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